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l. Acronyms & Glossary of Terms

Provide a list of all acronyms and glossary of terms used in the preparation of this report e.g.

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

OSHA Occupational Health & Safety Act

PFMA Public Financial Management Act

MED SUP Medical Superintendent

Fiduciary Management Key management personnel who have financial responsibility in the

SSCH

SSCH Sondu Sub County Hospital
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Sondu Sub County Level 4 Hospitat (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial starementsfor The year Ended 3Orh June 2023

2. Key SSCH Information and Management

(a) Background information

Sondu sub County Hospital is a level (4) hospital esta-blished under gazette notice and is domiciledin Kisumu county under the oepartment of Medical Services, prurfi n.rlti, and Sanitation Health& Sanitation Department.
The hospital is govemed by a Board of Management.

(b) Principal Actirrities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the hospital is to promote and participate in improvinghigh quality curative, preventive and rehabilitative hearth services to alr

(c) Key Management
The hospital's management is under the following key organs:- county department of Medical Services, Fublic H-ealth and Sanitation- Board of Management
- Accounting Officer/ Medical Superintendent- Management
- Others, committee and sub committees

(d) Fiduciary Managementl

The key- management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2022 andwho had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

1 Medical Superintendent Lucas Nyadida Odero
., Head of Nursing Mrs Risper Bitutu
4 Head of laboratory Mrs Ascar Chemutai
5 Head ofPharTnacy Mr. Innocent Ochenkwu
6 Head of Clinical services Mr. Charles Okemwa
7 Health Records and Information Head Ms Yvonne Okinda

ul

Nri.
NameDesignation



(e) FiduciaryOversightArrangements

Sondu Subcounty Hospital governed by a board of hospital management (HMB) as gazetted
periodically vie the Kenya Gazette notices, and the hospital management team (HMT) comprising of
the Hospital heads of units and departments, the medical superintendent who Chairs the HMT and is
the secretary to the HMB.
There are committees and sub committees comprising of members appointed liom both HMB and

HMT playing oversight over the internal control mechanisms within the SSCH, namety Hospital
Ethic Committee, Hospital Anti-Comrption Committees, Executive Expenditure Committee,
Hospital Human Resource Advisory Committee, Hospital Audit Committee, Medicines and

Therapeutics Committee and Quality Management Committee.
The hospital management works under direct oversight by the Kisumu County Government
Department of Medical Services Public Health and Sanitation Chief Officer; the director Medical
services and director Public Health and Sanitation under the patronage by the Kisumu County
Executive Committee Member.

(f) SSCH Headquarters

SONDU SUB COLINTY HOSPITAL
P.O. Box 271
SONDU.
KEI.ryA

(e) SSCH Contacts

Telephone: (+254) 7 5537 7 165
E-mail : sonduheakth@gmail. com

(h) SSCH Bankers

Commercial Banks

Kenya Commercial bank

(i) Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Offrce of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

1>

0) Principal Legal Adviser

IV
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Annual Report and Finon"i)i'{'o"^entsfor The iear Ended 30th June 2023

(k)

3. The Board of Management

CountY AttorneY

P.O. Box. 2738 - 40100

Kisumu, KenYa

Chairperson

Board.

managementHospitalof the

Mrs Fatuma Ibrahim

management

f financialBoard member in charge o

Rev. Nicholas Seda
2

Board member represen

organisatron

faith basedtlng

Martha Okano3

Board member rePreseniing H.C.S.D
Joseph Omune

ProfessionalsBoard member represe ntlng
Caroline APo llo

5

Board member rePresenting Youths
Ms Rose Otieno6

Board

cretary to the
Medical SuPerintendent & se

Lucas NYadida Odero
T

The AttorneY General

State Law Office
Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, KenYa

I
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Medical SuperintendenV

CEO of the Hospital

Head of Nursing

Head of laboratory

Head Clinical Services

Head of Pharmacy

Lucas Nyadida Odero
I

2 Mrs Risper Bitutu

Mrs. Ascar ChemutaiJ

4 Mr. Charles Okemwa

Mr. Innocent Ochenkwu

vt

4, Key Management Team
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Sondu Sub Coun4, Levcl 4 llospital (Kisumu Coung, Government)
Annual Report and Financial sratcmentsfor The year Ended 3hth June 2023

5. Chairman's Statcment

On behalf of the Board, I acknowledge that we are responsible for this hospital SSCH governance. I am

specifically responsible for the leadership of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role,

including good govemance in dealing with our core mandate. This includes ensuring that Board meetings

are held in an open manner, that the directors receive accurate, timely and clear information and allowing

sufficient time for agenda items to be discussed. I am also responsible for effective communications with

stakeholders and acting as a link between the hospital and the community in providing holistic care.

The Board remains committed to maintaining and evolving ,high standards of oversight throughout the

SSCH

On behalf of the board members of Sondu Sub County Hospital, I am pleased to present the2023 financial

statements of the hospital, the financial year ("FY 2022123")

Inflation has continued through the years supported by subdued demand pressure, rising food prices (lower

than-average rainfall) and higher global oil prices. Against the United States Dollar, the Kenya Shilling

depreciated by 6.69'o to close the year at 146.ll.There were disruptions across supply chains, together with

the depreciation of the shilling, increased the cost of doing business and impacted on our business spend

management.

Nevertheless, despite facing an ongoing volatile and uncertain economic situation, we managed to

overcome these hurdles by tapping into our robust fundamentals and providing the much-sorted aid to our

patients during this period

The Hospital remains resilient in delivering quality health services as per the hospital vison and mission to

the catchment population and beyond the borders in spite of the challenging and hard economic times.

The Board of management remains ambitious in its pursuit of excellence in the healthcare space as reflected

in the implementation of the annual work plan and the annual budgets.

@/
MRs Fi{uma Ibrahim

Chairlady, Board of Management

\,ll



Sondu Sub Counrr- Level 4 Hospital (Kisunu County Governme nt)
Annual Report and Financial Slatentents Jitr Thc Ycar Ended 30th June 202-l

6. Report of the Medical Superintendent

I am pleased to present to you the key highlights of the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the

year ended 30tb June 2023 for Sondu County Hospital. The hospital management received a total ol Kshs

1,138,910.00 Kshs l,l38,l22.paid out on different expenses during the period and by end ofthe

financial audit 30dJune 2022the hospital current liabilities stood at Kshs 294,000 of casual wages.

The management prioritized the strengthening of govemance frameworks, progressing infrastructure

projects as well as playing an active role in managing the financial performance of the Hospital.

To achieve this, the hospital engaged the right people into a revamped organizational structure.

We believe that the right transformational initiatives will continue yielding results, even in a highly

dynamic operating environment. Patient satisfaction is at the centre of what we do. We compliment this

with competent and experienced and courteous admitting staff, cutting across different health disciplines

We pride ourselves for a seamless integration of all these medical services to deliver the highest standard

of healthcare. We have reviewed our existing processes, policies, and procedures to respond better to our

clients' preferences. This report contains some of the highlights in various functions

EXPENDITURE

The hospital's direct costs increased by 58% in 2023. While the increase in the expense lines was

generally in line with the volatile economic situation in the country and ever increasing costs of

production and prices of commodities, i.e. cost of refenal services, food and ratios prices etc. more than

commensurate adverse increases were driven by disruptions in supply chains and the depreciation of the

Kenya Shilling against major currencies, particularly the United States Dollar (USD). By December

2022, the shilling exchanged at 140 against the USD, up from I I 3 at the same time in 2021 .

b 2022, we reviewed our supply chain extensively to extract efficiencies, enabling us to continuously

maintain our cost base at optimum levels.

vlll



Sondu Sub Coun4, Level 4 Hospital (Kisumu Coutr4' Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Endcd 30th June 2023

NURSING SER\/ICES

Quality nursing care remains the pillar of differential healthcare for the Sondu County Hospital patient

The division employs various approaches to enhance care and improve quality. The nursing team has

focused on training in quality and patient safety goals

IMAGING & RADIOLOGY

In keeping with the vision of the hospital to provide cutting edge service, the hospital is in the process to

acquire digital x-ray machine and we continue to offer quality antenatal ultrasound services that have

helped save many matemal and foetal lives thus reducing maternal and foetal mortalities.

LABOITA'I'ORY SERVIC ES

The Laboratory expansion project has started with completion expected within 2025. This is expected to

further boost outcomes and improve turnaround times and expand service delivery.

PHARMACY SERVICES

The departrnental quality objective on monitoring turnaround time (TAT) is on track. All outpatient

pharmacies met the target of serving over 80% of patients within 25 minutes. The overall outpatient

average was at78Yo. The hospital's tumover reduced by 8% primarily driven by decrease in patient

IX

To further enhance quality, Nurses were trained in various skills including gender based violence, oxygen

therapy and Emergency Nursing.

Revenue from laboratory tests increased by 10% in2023 over2022, attributed largely to increased

frequencies in running of tests and, and additional of lab personnel.

The laboratory continued its path of digital transformation, some expanded test panels include STD panel

and ANC panels. Some of the new tests include Hblac and stool for H pylori antigen test



Sondu Sub County Level 4 Hospital (Kisutttu Couttty Government)
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numbers in of 2022, the hospital completely separated the dispensing area from the stores turther

complementing its service delivery efliciency.

HUMAN R.ESOURCES

The Human Resources (HR) Division continued to ensure that the institution atfracted employees with

the required skills and experiences and to further retain, motivate and develop them. Investing in

employees remained paramount, a key pillar in realizing the hospital's strategic objectives.

Central to this was attracting the right talent in key positions; somc support staff positions still remain

unfilled even as the hospital struggles to ensure compliance with the minimum wage bill as gazetted by

the republic of Kenya.

We aim to uphold the values that the institution stands for and promote these within our human capital.

This process involves culture surveys aimed at getting feedback from staffas to their wellbeing and

working conditions.

LOOKING FORWARD

We recognize that our leadership position as the Hub in the hub and spoke model primary health care

being modelled towards UHC realization in Nyakach sub county, Kisumu County that requires us to

provide clear standards in the way health services are provided.

Forhrnately our strategic plan grants a clear roadmap on enhancing service delivery. Crucial to this is the

implementation of the key operational systems, the Hospital lnformation Management System (HMIS)

strengthening the revenue collection, efficient data collection and reducing the patient's turnaround time

in different departments' thus efficient service delivery to our patients as well as the implementation of

infrastructure projects and continuous replacement of obsolete medical equipment.

Looking into the future, we foresee strong growth and expanding returns sternrning from operations,

expanded service delivery points and greater collaboration with respective providers

APPRECIATION

I take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the Chairlady and Members o1 the Board of

Management for their guidance and support throughout our transformation journey. I acknowledge the

x
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contribution of our entire Staff and Management towards the perlormance of the hospital. They worked

tirelessly through the challenges of 2022 and demonstrated an enduring commitment to provide excellent

services to our clients. Thanks also to members of the Admitting Staff for their continued coltegial

support

L,*.
M.. Lu.usl$uiila Odero.

Medical superintendent

xl
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7. Statement of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

The Mandate of Sondu Sub County Hospital as an SSCH are

F Ensuring that systems are established for equality for all users of public services in the hospital;

) Ensuring impartiality and faimess in the process of delivery of public services in the hospitat;

) Ensuring continuity ofpublic services under all circumstances;

) Establishing systems in the Hospital to enable innovativeness and adaptability of public services to

the needs of users;

F Ensuring professionalism and ethics in Public Service is achieved and maintained;

D Establishing systems to ensure promotion and protection of rights of users of public services and

public servants as enshrined in the Bill of Rights;

l Institutionalizing a culture of accountability, integrity, transparency and promotion of values and

principles of public service;

) Ensuring effective, efficient and responsible use of public resources, and

) Ensuring responsiveness by public servants in delivery of public services.

It is my responsibility to provide the required leadership in designing suitable plans and strategies that will

contribute to high and sustainable socio- economic development.

These 3 Annual Program Based Service Delivery are;

Program 1: Curative and Rehabilitative Health Services; Prograrn Outcome: Effective and efficient

curative and rehabilitative health care services to the county citizens

Program Objective: To provide effective and efficient curative and rehabilitative at all health service

delivery units

Program 2: Preventive and Promotive Health Services; Program Outcome: Effective and efficient

preventive and promotive health interventions within the county

Program Objective: To provide effective and efficient preventive and pronrotive health interventions across

the county

,Program 3: General Administration, Planning, Management Support and Coordination; Program

' 
Outcome: Effective and efficient preventive and promotive health interventions within the county

xll
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program objective: To provide effective and efficient preventive and promotive health interventions across

the county

Sondu Sub County Hospital develops its annual work plan based on the above 3programs and 12 sub

programs

Assessment of the Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis'

The Sondu Sub County Hospital Board of Management achieved its performance targets set for the FY

2l21l2022period for its I 2 sub programs under the 3 main program based areas, as indicated in the diagram

below:

Sub Program l:HosP ital Service deliverY

00
0

Number of Blood

drives for blood and

tra nsfusion services

1

00Number of free dental

camps conducted

2

00Number of children
Under 5 dying in health
facility

3

00Number of su rgica I cold

cases operated

4

000Community based

rehabilitation outreaches

number of clients

referred to fu rthe r

management to level 4

5

1421037 Number clients

referred for further

management to level 5

1
1.

Nu m ber of
Hospital

Therapeutic

committee

xlll

FY 2O22l2A2tTARGET FY 202{/2022INDICATORs/No:

0

5
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meetings
held

9 Number of clinical audit
meetings held

4 7 2

10 Mortality meetings held
in past 3 months

0 0 3

Sub Program 2: Reproductive Maternal NeonatalChild Health (RMNCH)

Services/RMNCAH dashboa rd

r00%1 % of under five
years treated for
Diarrhea

t00% too%

2 % of Pregnant

women attending at
least 4 ANC visits

too% 42% 52%

60% 69%3 Women of
reproductive age

(WRA) receiving
family planning (FP)

com mod ities
coverage

too%

too% 40% t3%4 % of pregnant

women getting iron
su pp le m ents

25955 Deliveries

conducted by skilled

attendants in health
facilities coverage

0 006 Number of Uterine
Baloon Tamponade
(UBT) distributed

10 17 Number of Uterine
Baloon Tamponade
(UBT) used

42 3

t
Number of Fresh

' Still Births in the
facility

I

*

xlv

I

S/NOr INDICATOR TARGET tY 202].12022 fY 2022/2023
I



Sottdu Sub County Level 4 Hospital (Kisumu 9?ul'y Governnent)

Annual Reporr and Finantcial itatements for The Year Ended 3Oth June 2023

0
9 Number of FacilitY

Maternal deaths

0 0

0
10 Number of maternal

deaths audited

0 0

11 Under L Year Pe nta

1 drop out rates

o% 9% 26o/o

,11 Children under 1

year of age fullY

immunized coverage

t00% 59% 76%

Sub Program 3: Nutrition Services

% of Children under

5 years attending
Child Welfare Clinics

who are under

<2% ts% L%
1

weight

2 % of Children under

5 years attending

Child Welfare Clinics

who are stunted

<5% o.2% 0.o3%

3 Proportion of ANC

Mothers provided

with Combined
folate

too% 32% t6%

Number of facilities

wlth therapeutic
feeds

1 1 1

Sub Program 4: TB Control lnterventions

20 45

1 Number of TB cases

ldentified

42

2

Proportion of TB Patients
tested for HIV

IOO% L9% 24%

3 Proportion of TB Patients
completing treatm e nt

700%
O'/o t4%

xv

s/No. INDICATOR IARGET FY 2oztl2022 FY 202212023

4

s/No NDICATOR l-rv,,zo2r/2022 iy rci27lzo23
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0
Number of MDR TB

d iag n osed
4 0

1

5
TBHIV case fatality

0
4 6

Sub program 5: HIV/AIDS prevention interventions

Number of PLWHIV

newly identified

95
80 56

2
Proportion of
deliveries from
HIV+ve Mothers

9%8%

95%

3
Proportion of HIV clients
on ART vira lly suppressed 9S%

90%

0%

t.9%

4
Proportion of
HIV exposed

infants
tu rn ing

HIV+ve

before 24

months

Sub program 6: Malaria Control lnterventions

73%LOOo/o 78%1 Proportion of Children
under 1 distributed with
Long Lasting lnsecticide
Treated Nets (LLlTNs) in
endemic and epidemic
districts

93o/oLOO% 95%2 Proportion Pregnant
women receiving LLITNS

58%73%LOr Yo3 ?roportion of pregnant
women receiving lPT2

xvl

s/No INDICATOR TARGET FY 20ZVZO22 Fl 202212023

1

FY 2:02212023s/Nc.' ':r I.iNDlcArcF IARGET FY 202t12:022
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1,6%1.8%Proportion of patients
testing Malaria positive
among those suspected
to have Malaria

4

1.00%LOO% looo/.Proportion of GOK

fa cilities with Malaria

testing Laboratory
services among

5

ram 7: Non-Communicable Disease Control

00 01

Sub Prog

Number of ad u lts OPD

clients with BMI more
than 25

L241582 Number of Women of
Reproductive Age
screened for cervica I

ca ncers

483 Number of new
Outpatients with mental
health conditions

73 37Number of new
Outpatients found with
high blood pressure

4

700o/o100% 1.O0%6 Proportion of school age

Children de-wormed

Sub Program 9: Gender based violence /GRM lnterventions

Number of new
outpatient cases

attributed to gender-
based violence

42 231

Proportion of facilities
with Grievance
Monitoring & Redress
Committee

tOOo/o 0 LOo%2

Sub Program 10: Health workers and Human Resource Management

Total number of Medical
office rs

0 0 07

4Total number of Clinical
Officers

4 42

x\,1I

s/No /:I{cl: FY 202u2022

30

s/No. I INDTCATOR TARGE FY2O2tl2022 l"ti267rft67s

s/No FY

2027/2022
FY

2
I

o22l2023
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103 Total number of N u rsing
staffs

10 10

4 Total Number of
Laboratory staffs

2 2 2

5 Total number of staffs on
sick leave

0 0 0

6 Total number on study
leave

1 1 1

xvllt
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8. Corporate Governance Statement

TheCountyGovemmentofKisumuhasinstitutedsystemstoensurethathighstandardsofgovemance
;;;i;i"J at all levels of the HosPital'

TheHospitalBoardofManagementrecognizesthe.importanceofcorporategovernanceandassuchit
carries out its mandate *'if'-t''inttty' openntss' and integrity'

The Board of Management is responsible for the provision of oversight to the oDerational activities of the

Hospital on behalf of th. *.*i"1, "i 
ir,e public #:iii;;;;iK'nvl ln line wiih the manifesto of the

Governor and Ministry oifttuttt' regulations and guidelines'

'*.r.r. 
also entrusted with the responsibility. of ensuring strong.corporate-govemance and ethical

. practices within the H"#;i. il;;lole extends t" ;;;;g thatihe Hospitaicomplies with the relevant

laws.
TheBoardmembersattachgreatimportanc::*:needtoconductthebusinessandoperationsofthe
Hospitalwithintegrity"nainu..o,a.ncewithgeneiallyacceptedcorporatebestpracttces.

Belowarethekeyfeaturesofcorporategovernancestructuresandinternalcontrolsystemsputinplace
,"a tfr", were in operation during the year'

?.".1*_ilM"$l#YlTT",,r"r.o of non-executive appointed members via rhe Kenva Gazette

Notices after every 3 Years'

ExercisingthepowersconferredbyArticle^l83and186(l)oftheconstifutionofKenya20l0,andPart2
of the Fourth schedule tt.r.oi ,..iio, f O of tne Co,rniy do**"nt Act and section iO 1n;' 1o;' and (p)

of the Hearth Act,20r7,thei]sumu county e*".*rilZoli.it..'r.["*t.. for Medical Services' Public

Health and Sanitation, dil#;Jri;-6;b:: ztiis ,i;Ti;t renva Gazette Notice issue 404 the

following (see table ua"$i. 
'.rr."iru-c"*rv H"rpi;iil; f* a ierm of 3 vears to serve on part-trme

basis;

ent Boardital manaC Hoethfooners
atuma tbSMr entemmanaalancfinfocarhn ceremblndafoB

eS dalasohN cMr
atlonor

ith basedting faBoard member rePresen

Mrs Martha Okano
H.C.S.DresentlnrerbemmdoarB

MsRose Otieno resentln fe SonaSSoPrrerbmemoardB
IoMrs Caro Youthssentlnemb rermoardB

lbert botamAMr
daroBethtoS&denenennLlSacediM

dida OderoMr Lucas N

xlx

Role
Name
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The Board is held accountable and responsible for the effective governance of the institution.
Members of the Board have a broad range of skills and experience, and each brings independent
judgment and unique expertise and advisory perspectives to the Board's deliberations.

Summarized below are the key roles and responsibilities of the Board:
) Approve and adopt strategic plans and annual budgets, set objectives, and review key risk

and performance areas.
) Determine overall policies and procedures to ensure integrity of the Hospital's

management of risk and internal controls.
) Review, at regular meetings, Management's performance against approved deliverables.

The full Board meets at least five times a year and the Chairperson holds weekly meetings with the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Board members are given appropriate and timely information to enable them maintain full and

effective control over strategic, financial, operational and compliance matters.

Except for direction and guidance on general policy, the Board has delegated authority for conduct of
day-to-day business to the Chief Executive Officer. The Board nonetheless retains responsibility for
establishing and maintaining the Hospital's overall internal control, financial, operational and compliance
framework.

The Board meets quarterly as per its annual work plan or additionally when necessary to consider rnatters

ofSSCH oversight. The Board's agenda and work plan are prepared early in the year and adequate notice,
agenda and Board papers are circulated within the stipulated timeline.

BOARD REMUNERATION

Hospital Board of Management members provide services to the SSCH to which they are entitled to a
remuneration as provided for by the SRC guidelines and circulars on Remuneration of board members for
level IV hospitals.
They are paid a standard fee for attending Board meetings, board committee meetings and any other SSCH

business that they may be called to undertake.

9. Management Discussion and Analysis

ClinicaUoperational performance

Data from the Health records and information department shows the following details as to clinical/
operational performance of Sondu Sub County Hospital in the financial years of 202112022 and202212023:

Performance ltem/
Activity 2022 - 2023

Unit of count/
measure 2021 -2022

Fin ancial ear
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Thehospitalslacksaccidentsandemergencydepartment.Assuchallcasesreceivedwithintheperi
above were all refened t";;th., K;r;-; County n.i.*.f Hospital or Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Tea

and Refenal HosPital

Financial performance that includes

DuringtheperiodtheFY2o22.2o23,SondusubCountyHospitalgenerateditsrevenuesfromtheon-source
revenue collections (service charges), NHIF and UeiW'laisUu'st'ntnt' as well as the recunent funds

from the County Government of Kisumu'

The funds for the Fy 2022 _ 2023 were spent as per the details of this report

ods
ching

55No. ofbedsBed capacttY of the

hospital
7,100No. of PatientsOverall Patient

attendance during the

year; both inPatient &

outpatient

xxl
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10. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting

Sondu Sub County Hospital exists to transform lives. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting

the client/Citizen first, delivering health services, and improving operational excellence. Below is an

outline of the organisation's policies and activities that promote sustainability.

Compliance with legislation is the minimum standard to which the hospital shall adhere.

The hospital shall also endeavour to follow best practice with due regard for its SSCH needs, in line with

the requirements of NEMA and the expectations of all interested parties.

The objectives for the Hospital under this policy are to:

) Reduce the carbon footprint of the Hospital,

) Reduce energy consumption,

D Minimise the production of all types of waste, especially paper. Encourage reuse, recycling and the

disposal of other waste that cannot be avoided, in a responsible manner.

All board members and Hospital management team are responsible for communicating and implementing

this Policy and ensure that;

a) Employees and confractors are encouraged to be receptive to the personal impact they can have on

this policy and to report areas of concem.

b) Trainingisprovidedaspartofstaffdevelopmenttakingintoaccountresponsibilities.

c) Efforts are made to minimize travel by maximising IT systems.

d) Favour the use of suppliers who are committed to environmental good practice.

e) Carbon offsetting is implemented, that as a minimum, is commensurate to the level of the SSCH

travel.

f) Pollution is prevented in all forms, especially from redundant electrical equipment.

g) All incidents detrimental to the environment are reported, investigated and action taken to prevent

reoccurrence

xxll
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environment and evaluating the impact that the SSCH's services can have.
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The hospital management is committed to continually improving its performance by regularly reviewing

itsenvironmentalimpacts,andonanannualbasis,updateitspolicyinlinewiththereview

TheHospitalmanagementfollowstheEUTaxonomyRegulationestablishingsixkeyenvironmental

obj ectives towards sustainability;

i) Climate change mitigation

ii) Climate change adaPtation

iii) The sustainable use and protection of water and marine resources

iv) The transition to a circular economy

v) Pollution prevention and control

vi) The protection and restoration of biodiversity and ecosystems

TheHospitalmanagementnotesthatdiflerentmeansmayberequiredforanactivitytomakeasubstantial

conffibutiontoeachobjectiveandasleaderswemustfindwaystoensureimpactmeasurescontinueto

grow and evolve with changing needs' .ng 
needs to transition from

For sustainability reporting to contribute to better decision-making' reportt

voluntary practices to mandatory requirements; this effort is much appreciated'
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I1. Report of The Board of Management

The Board members submit their report together with the Audited F'inancial Statements for the year ended
June 30,2023, which show the state ofthe hospttal's affairs.

Principal activities
Sondu Sub County Hospital provides not-for-profit public health care services towards realization of
universal healthcare in Kenya.

Financial Performance
The hospital management received a total of Kshs 1165910.00 Kshs 1165122.00 paid out on different
expenses during the period and by end of the financial audit 30th lune 2022 the hospital current liabilities
stood at Ks 294000.00
Management prioritized the strengthening of governance frameworks, progressing infrastructure projects
as well as playing an active role in managing the financial performance of the Hospital.

To achieve this, the hospital engaged the right people into a revamped organizational structure

Patient satisfaction is at the centre of what we do. We compliment this with competent and experienced
and courteous staff, cutting across different health disciplines.

We pride ourselves for a seamless integration of all these medical services to deliver the highest standard

of healthcare. We have reviewed our existing processes, policies, and procedures to respond better to our
clients'preferences.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The Board of management is constantly reviewing whether the policies and risk management programs in
place are appropriate and effective to manage and minimize the exposure in the long term.

The risks that the Hospital is exposed to include

) Financial Risks, these include the market risks, credit risk, foreign exchange fluctuations exposure

and other regulatory risks that affect the market and financial sector operations which could have a

ripple effect on the hospital

) Operational risk mainly includes both internal and external factors that affect the hospital processes,

personnel, technology, and infrastructure

) The legal and regulatory requirements can have a significant impact on the operations of the

Hospital

Corporate Social Responsibility
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So,nau SuA County Level 4 Hospiral (Kisumu 9?u"n 
Government)

Annuot Report and Fi^';';;; i';;;;;tents for tn" ilo' Ended 30th June 2023

Socialsustainabilityrequiresdevelopmentofpoliciesandpracticesthatpromotetheco-existenceofthe
;.",'o;il;;tr uoitr tnl i"tt-ut ani external stakeholders'

The hospitat continues ,";;;;;t;;i, involved ,n .o.p"olu* tocial responsibilities within various

Outlook
TheHospital'sfocuscontinuesfgbeol.qt"'Y:Ii*'care'whichisthe'pillaroftheHospital'anditis
with this culrure of servr.. .*."llrn.. that continuei?;;;il;; ;" patient-focus' service delivery and

o;i;.::'.',n::ffi:T"lfffi:.Tlf.1,,jtff:illlr:"'to deriver quaritv to.a, our stakehorders

While the operating.rr,,fi:rJ;riirip"..r .*,,.t*^, *."n1" tlttntttiUtt"te strategies to ensure that

,rr" i"jrr""'"i,t ",J 
mitluti"s remains on track'

BoARDoFMANAGEMENTS,STATEMENTASTOINFORMATIoNGIVENToAUDITORS

EachofthepersonswhoisamemberoftheBoardofManagementatthedateofapprovalofthisreport
confirms that: so rur., ttl so"iJ l"I.rnu., ir r*u.", tt"re is-no relevant.audit information of which the

auditors are unaware; "J;;;;;JMember 
h.r ;;;tl i"rri'r,.pr that he/she ought to have taken as a

Board Member to make himselflherself aware 
"f 

;; ;1.";;i *ait lnrot'ution and to establish that the

Communittes

auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

By Order of the Board

TheAuditorGeneralisresponsibleforthestatutoryauditoftheSSCHinaccordancewithAlticle229of
the Constitution of Kenya *a tnt Public Audit Act 2015'

Lucas Nyadid" Od.l9. 
, .

Medical SuPerintendehI

!rn
l- i0100,

*Pi

Lucas NYadida Odero

SecretarY to the Board

CountY Government of Kisumu
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12. Statement of Board of Managernent's Responsibilities

Section 164 of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires the Board of Management to prepare
financial statements in respect of that SSCA, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
SSCH at the end ofthe financial year/period and the operating results of the SSCII for that yearlperiod. The
Board of Management is also required to ensure that the SSCI/ keeps proper accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the SSCfl. The council members are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the SSCH.

The Board of Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the SSCLI financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the SSCH for and as at the end of the
financial year (period) ended on June 30, 2023. This responsibility includes: (I) maintaining adequate
financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
reporting period, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the SSCH, (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that they
are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets ol SSCH

; (v) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting estimatcs that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Management accepts responsibility for the SSCH financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates, in conformiry with lntemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner
required by the PFM Act, 2012.
The Board members are of the opinion that the S,SCH's financial statements give a true and fair view of the

state ofSSCl/transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2023,and ofthe SSCI/financial position
as at that date. The Board members further confirm the completeness of the accounting records rnaintained

for the SSCH, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the SSCH financial statements as well as

the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

They also accept responsibility for:
) Designing, implementing and maintaining such intemal control as they determine necessary to enable

the presentation of financial statements that are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error;

) Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently; and

The Hospital Board of Management acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statemcnts does

not relieve them of their responsibilities.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the SSCH will not remain a
going concem for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.
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Approvat of the financial statements

The Hospitat's financial statements were approved by the Board on

its behalf bY:

Name:
Chairperson
Board of Management

ztIt( "t -.:-9 and signed on

Il0i{

t'
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NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON SONDU SUB.COUNW LEVEL 4
HOSPITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023 . COUNTY GOVERNMENT
OF KISUMU

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management AcL,2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sondu Sub-County Level 4
Hospital - County Government of Kisumu set out on pages 1 to 35, which comprise of the
statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial

Report of the Auditor-()eneral on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:



performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and the
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in
accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35
of the Public Audit Act, 2015.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Inaccuracies in the Financial Statements

The financial statements provided for audit had the following inaccuracies;

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts has not been included
in the financial statements.

The statement of financial position reflects a Nil amount for surplus/deficit although
the statement of financial performance reflects a deficit of Kshs.142,716 and
Kshs.623,016 for the financial year 202212023 and 202112022 respectively.

The statement of changes in net assets reflects a Nil amount for accumulated
surplus as at 30 June, 2023 while the statement of financial performance reflects
(Kshs.142,716) deficit for the year and a comparative amount of (Kshs.623,000).

IV The statement of cashflow reflects a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
amount of Kshs.142,716 however, the recalculated amount was Kshs.157,284.

The statement of financial performance reflects an opening balance for revenue
from exchange transactions amount of Kshs.1,916,089 while the prior year
financial statements indicates an amount of Kshs.2,257,612for the same.

vI The statement of financial performance reflects an opening balance for net surplus
for the yearamount of Kshs.623,016while the prior year financial statements
indicates an amount of Kshs.197,753 for the same.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 202 3 - County
Government of Kisumu
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ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of Kisumu
as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and do not comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,ihe County
Governments Act, 2012 and the Health Ac|,2017.

ii

The statement of financial performance reflects a comparative amount of Nil for
grants from donors and development partners while the prior year's financial
statements indicates Kshs.425,270 for the same.



vilt The statement of financial position reflects total net assets and liabilities amount
of Kshs.462,942 while the prior year's financial statements indicates a Nil amount
for the same.

tx The statement of cashflow reflects opening balance for transfer from the County
Government an amount of Kshs.1,832,349 while the prior year financial statement
indicates an amount of Kshs.1 ,832,342 for the same.

The statement of cashflow reflects Nil amount for transfer from other Government
entities while the prior year financial statements indicates an amount of
Kshs.425,270 for the same.

xt The statement of cashflow indicates an opening balance for cash and cash
equivalent amount of Kshs.462,942 while the prior year's financial statements
reflects a Nil amount for the same.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the financial statements could
not be confirmed.

2. Variances Between the Revenue Reported and the Manual Monthly Collection
Analysis

The statement of financial performance reflects rendering services - medical services
income of Kshs.178,211 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. Analysis of
the Manual Monthly Collection Reports and bank statements to verify receipt of the funds
reflect a receipt of funds amounting to Kshs.2,338,249 resulting to unexplainable variance
of Kshs.2,160,038.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revenue from exchange
transactions amount of Kshs.178,211 could not be confirmed.

3. Employee Costs

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs amount of Kshs.308,000
as disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. Review of the records provided for
audit revealed the following anomalies:

3.1 Underpayment of Gasuals

Review of the documents provided for audit including the master rolls and the payment
vouchers revealed that the casual employees were being underpaid with some even
receiving a monthly pay of Kshs.6,000 per month against the minimum wage rate of
Kshs.13,572.90 for the general casuals as per the minimum wage guidelines.

3.2 Failure to Disclose the Unpaid Wages

The amount of Kshs.308,000 excludes arrears of Kshs.294,000 owed to casual
employees as wages for the months of October, 2022 to June, 2023. Further,

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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Kshs.294,000 was not disclosed as trade and other payables in the statement of financial
position.

3.3 Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid by the County Government

The Hospital received services from staff who are on permanent and pensionable basis
and on contract who are employed and paid by the County. However, the expenditure
was not disclosed in the financial statements.

Further, Management did not provide supporting documents including the monthly
payrolls, employees' ethnicity, personnel files, list of employees recruited during the year
and those who exited during the year and also other details like full name, age, sex,
occupation, date of employment, nationality and educational level of each of his
employees as stipulated in law. lt was therefore not possible to determine the actual
amount paid by the County Government on behalf of the Hospital as salaries.

3.4 Non-Disclosure of Grants from Donors and Development Partners

Review of staff list revealed that a total of eighteen (18) members of staff were being paid
by a non-governmental Organization (Donor). However, monthly payrolls and the actual
amount paid as salaries were not disclosed in the financial statements as Grants from
Donors and Development Partners.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the employee costs amount of
Kshs.308,000 could not be confirmed.

4. Variances in Revenue from Rendering Services

The statement of financial performance reflects Kshs.178,211 in respect to rendering of
service- medical service income as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. This
amount does not include National Health lnsurance Fund reimbursements. However, the
National Health lnsurance Fund records revealed an amount of Kshs.471,000 was paid
to the Hospital during the financial year resulting to an unexplained variance of
Kshs.471,000.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of revenue from rendering
services- Medical service lncome of Kshs.178,211 could not be confirmed.

5. Variances in Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects Nil balance in respect to receivables from
exchange transactions. However, data from the National Health lnsurance Fund (NHIF)
indicates an outstanding amount of Kshs.1,318,180 resulting to an unexplained variance
of Kshs.1,318,180.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Nil balance in respect of
receivables from exchange transactions could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Covernment of Kisumu
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6. Variances in Trade and Other Payables

The statement of financial position reflects Nil balance in respect to trade and other
payables. However, KEMSA records reflect Kshs.1,990 resulting to an unexplained
variance of Kshs. 1,990.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, and completeness of Nil balance in respect to trade
and other payables could not be confirmed.

7. Unsupported Cash and Gash Equivalents

The statement of financial position reflects a cash and cash equivalent balance of
Kshs.153,447 as disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements. However, review of the
documents provided for audit including the cash books and bank statements revealed
that the financial statements reflects an amount of Kshs.153,447 while the cash book
reflects a balance of Kshs.153,927 leading to a variance of Kshs.480.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalent
balance of Kshs.153,447 could not be confirmed.

The statement of financial position reflects Nil balance for inventories. However, physical
verification in stores records revealed that some Hospital items had closing balances of
undetermined value. Further, no inventory valuation report was provided for audit and no
evidence of conducting of the annual stock take to confirm the quantities, value and status
of closing inventory balances as at 30 June, 2023.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and valuation of the Nil inventory
balance could not be confirmed.

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, review of Hospital records and physical verification revealed various assets
including land, buildings, motor vehicles, furniture, computers and equipment which were
not disclosed in the financial statements. Further, the ownership documents for land were
not provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy, completeness and ownership of Nil property, plant
and equipment balance could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical

8. Unconfirmed Inventory Balance

9. Non-Disclosure of Property, Plant and Equipment

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Lavvfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources sections of my report, based
on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not been applied
laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Review of the financial statements and annual reports provided for audit revealed the
following anomalies;

i. The profile of the Board does not indicate whether members are independent or
alternate.

The profile of Medical Superintendent does not indicate whether he has a
masters degree as required. ln addition, the profiles of Management team do not
include their passport size photos and their key professional qualifications.

ilt

IV

VI The statements reflected in the table of contents page reflects 30 June 20xx

vil The statement of cashflow does not indicate the respective Note numbers

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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1. Non-Compliance with the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (PSASB)
Reporting Requirements

The profile of Board members does not indicate their age, key qualifications and
work experience.

The financial statements have not been signed by anyone with ICPAK
registration number.

The corresponding page number for the statement of comparison of budget and
actual amounts reflects Error! Bookmark not defined.



v t Management discussions and analysis does not include important details like
mortality rate, bed occupancy rate and the average length of stay for the patients.

The financial performance on page xxiv indicates that the Hospital Management
received a total of Kshs.1,165,910 and Kshs.1,165,122 paid out on different
expenses during the period which is false as per the statement of financial
performance and statement of financial position.

The statement of financial performance indicates prior year as 2020121 instead
of 2021122.

tx

xt The heading in the statement of financial performance, statement of financial
position, statement of net assets ant the statement of cashflow reads Sondu
Level iv sub-county Hospital instead of Sondu Sub County Level 4 Hospital.

xii. The statement of changes in net assets erroneously indicates July 1, 2022 and
July 1, 2023 instead of 1 July, 2021 and 1 July, 2022 respectively.

ln the circumstances, the presentation and disclosures in the financial statements do not
comply with the accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Standards Board.

2. Failure to Transfer Revenue to the County Revenue Fund Account

The statement of financial performance reflects rendering services- medical services
income of Kshs.178,211 as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. However, the
amount was not transferred to the County Revenue Fund Account for approval by the
Controller of Budget before withdrawal. This was contrary to Regulation 81(1-3) of Public
Finance and Management (County Government) Regulations 2015 which states that a
receiver of revenue shall promptly deposit into the County exchequer account all receipts
due to the County Revenue Fund.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

3. Lack of Quarterly Revenue Reports

Thestatementof financialperformancereflectsKshs.lT8,2ll inrelationtotherendering
of services - medical income as disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. However,
the Hospital did not provide evidence to show that the reports were prepared and
submitted the same to the County treasury with a copy to the Auditor General as per the
requirement of Regulations 64(1) of the Public Finance Management (County)
Regulations,2015 which requires the Accounting Officer or receiver of revenue or
collector of revenue to prepare a quarterly report not later than the 15th day after the end
of the quarter.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Covernment of Kisumu
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4. Deficiencies in lmplementation of Universal Health Coverage (UHC)

Review of Hospital records and interviews on verification of services offered, equipment
used and medical specialists in the Hospital at the time of audit revealed that the Hospital
did not meet the requirements of Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines due
to staff deficits by 93 staff requirements or 92o/o of the authorized establishment.

Staff Requirements
Leve!4

Standard

Number
in

Hospital Variance
Percentage

otto

MedicalOfficers 16 0 16 100
Anesthesiologists 2 100
General Surgeons 2 0 2 100

Gynecologists 2 0 2 100

Pediatrics 2 0 2 100

Radiologists 2 2 100
Kenya Registered
Community Health
Nurses

75 8 67 89

Total 1 0 1 I 93 92

ln addition, the Hospital lacked the necessary equipment and machines outlined in the
Health Policy Guidelines as detailed below;

Service

Level4
Hospital
Standard

Actuals
in the

Hospita! Variance
Percentage

o,to

Beds 150 0 150 100
Resuscitaire (2 ln Labor &
1 ln Theatre)

2 0 2 100

New Born Unit lncubators 5 1 4 80
New Born Unit Cots 5 0 5 100
Functional ICU Beds 6 0 6 100
High Dependency Unit
(Hdu) Beds

6 0 6 100

Renal Unit with At least 5
Dialysis Machines

0 5 100

Two Functional
Operational Theatres-
Maternity & General

0 2 100

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of Health Act, 2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standard of health, which includes the right to health

2 0

0

5

2
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care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article 43(1) of the
Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved.

ln the circumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate

4. Non-compliance on Biomedical Waste Management

Review of the operations at the Hospital revealed that the facility operated without an
incinerator and that non-sensitive Hospital waste was accumulated at the burning
chamber for months due to lack of fuel. The sensitive biomedical waste is accumulated
and transported to Kisumu level 5 Hospital for disposal. However, there was no evidence
that Management had complied with NEMA Waste Management Regulations, 2006 on
biomedical waste management on taking all practical steps to ensure that waste is
managed in a manner which will protect human health and the environment against the
adverse effects which may result from the waste.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

5. Board of Management Expenses

5.1 Lack of Appointment Letters for the Board Members

The statement of financial performance reflects board expenses of Kshs.23,500 as
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. Review of the Board records including
the Kenya gazette notices revealed that on '1 '1 October, 2019, seven (7) members were
gazetted and appointed to the Board of Management of the Hospital. However, the
appointment letters for the Board members indicating the terms of engagement were not
provided for audit. Management revealed members were not issued with letters.

5.2 lrregular Board Meetings

The Governor of Kisumu County appointed the Board of Management through a Gazette
Notice on 1 1 October, 2019 for a term of three (3) years which expired on October,2O22.
However, review of Board files revealed that one (1) Board meeting was held on
'll January, 2023 which was after the expiry date of their appointment. No evidence of
extension of their appointment was provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law

6. !rregular Procurement of Medical/Clinica! ltems

The statement of financial performance reflects medical/clinical costs of Kshs.555,787.
Review of the payment records including the payment vouchers revealed that the
Management procured goods directly from the suppliers without subjecting them to the
procurement process. This was contrary to Section 106(1Xb) of the Public Procurement
and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which requires a procuring entity to prepare on prequalified

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
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listing of suppliers which sets out the specific requirements relating to goods, works or
services being procured.

ln the circumstances, the regularity and value for money may not have been achieved on
the expenditure of Kshs.555,787 in respect of medical/clinical goods and services.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Adverse Opinion and Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance sections of my
report, based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk
management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Lack of Risk Management Policy

During the year under review, the Hospital operated without a documented risk
management policy framework. Further, there was no evidence of risk identification, risk
assessment and evaluation of likelihood of risk occurrence and its impact on entities'
operation. This was contrary to regulation 158(1) of the Public Finance Management
(County Governments) Regulations, 2015 which requires that the Accounting Officer shall
ensure that (a) the county government entity develops risk management strategies, which
include fraud prevention mechanism; and (b) the county government entity develops a
system of risk management and internal controls that builds robust business operations.

ln the circumstances, effectiveness of risk management system at the Hospital could not
be confirmed.

2. Condemned Building in Use

Physical inspection of the Hospital's property done in Apnl,2024 revealed that there is a
building which had long been condemned by Public Works and Public Health including
during the period under review. The building has asbestos roof and cracks making it
inhabitable for humans. However, the building was being used as a maternity ward but
as at the time of audit, it was used as a dumping place for sharps.

Report o/ the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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ln the circumstances, the safety of the staff and patients while in the facility is
compromised.

3. Lack of a Reliable System for Operations of the Hospital

Review of the operations at the Hospital revealed that the Hospital had no information
system in place that is integrated to the different departments includrng the laboratory,
pharmacy among others. The Hospital is using manual system for operations such as
receipting of revenue, billing and generating reports, which are sometimes fed into
Microsoft excel. The Hospital does not have internet connectivity to assist in the
operations of the Hospital.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls in the operations could not be
confirmed.

4. Lack of Revenue Safeguards and Controls

The statement of financial performance reflects total revenue of Kshs.948,071 which
includes revenue from exchange transactions on rendering of services-medical service
income of Kshs.178,211. Review of the documentation provided revealed that
Management of the facility received cash from the patients and generated manual
receipts. Further, the banking slips were not supported by any receipts and therefore it
was difficult to ascertain that the correct amount was banked. ln addition, the receipts in
the books are not dated making it difficult to ascertain collections for a certain day.
Further, there was no segregation of duties in revenue collection because the same
person receives revenue, issues receipts and carries out the banking of revenue.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal controls over revenue management
could not be confirmed.

5. Failure to Maintain Fixed Asset Register

The statement of financial position reflects Nil property, plant and equipment balance.
However, it was noted that the Hospital does not maintain fixed asset register to control
its assets. This is contrary to Regulation 136(1) of the Public Finance Management
(County Government) Regulations, 2015 which states that the Accounting Officer shall
be responsible for maintaining a register of assets under his or her control or possession
as prescribed by the relevant laws. ln addition, there was no evidence to show that the
fund has ever evaluated its assets to ascertain the correct market values.

ln the circumstances, the existence of an effective mechanism to safeguard assets could
not be confirmed and Management was in breach of the regulations.

6. Lack of Hospita! Management Board

The statement of financial performance reflects board expenses of Kshs.23,500 as
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements. lt was noted that the Governor of Kisumu

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
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County appointed the Board of Management through a Gazette Notice on
1 1 October, 2019 for a term of three (3) years which expired on Octobe r,2022. However,
review of Board files revealed that one (1) Board meeting was held on 11 January,
2023 which was after the expiry date of their appointment. No evidence of extension of
their appointment was provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of management oversight and governance
function could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Management

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit
Act,2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to overall
governance and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the
control environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of usei's taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 201 5 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professionaljudgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

. ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of

Report of the Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
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accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Hospital's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA ncy CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

08 July, 2024

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Sondu Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2023 - County
Government of Kisumu
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14. Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on

on its behalf bY

and signed
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Revenue from rent of facilities

Finance /Interest Income

Other income (sPecrfY)

Revenue from exchange transactions

Total revenue

Expenses

MedicaVClinical costs
8

EmploYee costs

Board of Management ExPenses
l0

Depreciation and amortizatton expense

airs and maintenance
11

Rep

Grants and subsidies

General expenses

Finance costs

l2

83,740118,2ll

1,916,089948,071

1,047 ,45',1555,787

788,000308,000

75,00023,500

155,00030,000

473,648173,s00

2,539,1051,090,787
Total expenses
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Other gains/(losses)

Gain on disposal of non-Current assets

Unrealized gain on fair value of investments

Medical services contracts Gains/Losses

Impairment loss

Gain on foreign exchange transactions

Total other gains/(losses)

Net Surplus for the year (t42,,716) (623,016)

Attributable to

Surplus/(dqlici t) attributable to minority interest

Surplus attributable to owners of the controlling SSCH

Chairman

Board of Management

Head of Financc

ICPAK No:

Medical uperintendcnt

2
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15. Statement of Financial Position As At 30th June 2023

Assets

Current assets 462,942

and cash equivalentsCash
Sonactltranschcex angfromESvabRecei 0300,000

vab
onsactltransec-exnon hangfromeSeRec

Inventortes
453,447

Total Current Assets

Non-current assets 00
lant, and equiPmentProPertY, P 00

lntangible assets 0

Investment 00
tal Non-current Assets'fo

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other PaYables

Refundab
tSenatlrs/PtomeUSfromtSdepos

Provtstons

Finance lease obligation

meonfeneddefoonrtlpo

on of borrowtngsCurrent Portt

Social Benefits

otal Current LiabilitiesT

Non-current liabilities

Provisions
gati noboceascenanFenno -CunN

eferre omclncddfonoorttenCurrno pN

Non - Current Porti on of borrowlngs

abnoSe tyScec conrveS

Social Benefits

3

t53,44'l

462,942

0

Total assets

Current
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Total Non-current liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net assets

Revaluation reserve 0 0

Accumulated surplus/Defi cit 0 0

Capital Fund 0 0

Total Net Assets and Liabilities 453,447 462,942

(The notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.)

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on
on its behalf by:

2,, ).2

Chairman
Board of Management

Lu *--..,.,'*
Medical SuperintendentHead of Finance

ICPAK No:

4

and signed
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16. Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2023

0000
As at JulY 1,2022

000
Revaluation gatn

0000
Surplus(dqlictf for the Year 0000
Capi taUDevelopment grants

0000
As at June 30,2022

0000
At JulY l, 2023 0000
Revaluation gatn

000
Surplus/( deficit) for the Year 0000
cap itaVDeveloPment $ants 0000

a

0

0

At June 30,2023
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Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Transfers from the County Govemment 769,860 1,832,349

Grants from donors and development partners 0 0

Transfers from other Govemment entities 0 0

Public contributions and donations 0 0

Rendering of services- Medical Service Income t78,2tl 83,740

Revenue from rent of facilities 0 0

Finance / interest income 0 0

Miscellaneous r eceipts(s p ecify) 0

Total Receipts 1,249,071 l,gl6,0gg

MedicaUClinical costs 555,787 I,047 ,457

Employee costs 308,000 788,000

Board of Management Expenses 23,500 75,000

Grants and subsidies 0

Maintainance & Repairs 30,000 155,000

Finance cost 0

General expenses 173,500 473,648

Refunds paid out

Total Payments 1,090,797 2,539,105

Net cash flows from operating activities 42

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase ofproperfy, plant, equipment &
intan ible assets 0 0

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant, and
0 0

Acquisition of investments 0 0

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 0

Itepayment of borrowings 0

0

0

Capital grants received 0

6

17. Statement of Cash l'lows for '[he Year f,nded 30 June 2023

ura

300,000

Payments

equipment

0

F
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activitiesfinancinglnusedflowshcasetN (623,016)(t42,716)
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Annual RePo rt an

18, Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

sSCH is established by and derives its authority and accountability from Facility

Improvement Fund (FIF) Act,202l' The SSCH is wholly owned by the Kisumu County

GovernmentandisdomiciledinKisumuCountyinKenya.TheSSCH'sprincipalactivity

is to provide universal healthcare

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment,

marketable securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their

estimated recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present

value. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with lnternational Public

Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions' It

alsorequiresmanagementtoexercisejudgementintheprocessofapplyingtheSSCll,s

accountingpolicies.Theareasinvolvingahigherdegreeofjudgmentorcomplexity,or

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed

in Note xx The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya

Shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of the sscH. The financial

statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and Intemational Public

Sector Accounting standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been

consistently applied to all the years presented'

9
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3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue effective in the year ended 30

June 2023

IPSAS

Financial

Instruments

4t: Applicable: 1't January 2023

The objective of IPSAS 41 is to establish principles for the financial

reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant

and useful information to users of financial statements for their

assessment of the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an SSCH's

future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for

financial assets that considers the characteristics of the

asset's cash flows and the objective for which the asset is

held;

Apptying an improved hedge accounting model that

broadens the hedging arrangements in scope of the

guidance. The model develops a strong link between an

SSCH's risk management strategies and the accounting

treatment for instruments held as part of the risk

management strategy.

IPSAS 42: Social

Benefits

Applicable: I't January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativeness and comparability of the information that a

reporting SSCH provides in its financial statements about social

benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial

statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the SSCH.

l0

'.-

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss

model that is applicable to all hnancial instruments subject

to impairment testing; and

a

.a
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ii) New and amended stan d interrydations in issue b

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the SSCH's

financial performance, financial position and cash flows

and

social benefit schemes;tion of those(b) The keY features of the opera

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued'

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted

when IPSAS 41 was issued'

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for financial guarantee conhacts which were

inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued'

AmendmentstoIPSAS33,toupdatetheguidanceonclassifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 41 was issued'

Applicable: l' tJanuary 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information about the General

Government Sector.

AmendmentstorefertothelatestSystemofNationalAccounts(SNA

2008).

o IPSAS 39: EmPloYee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no

longer defined in IPSAS.

c IPSAS 29: Financial instruments" Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2023 IPSAS handbook as it is now

superseded by IPSAS 4l which is applicable from l't Jantaty 2023 '

Applicable Ii January 2023Other

improvements to

IPSAS

,,,

entted 30 June 2023

dards an

l1

ut not yet effective in the Year

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I'

Financial

lnstruments
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iii) Early adoption of standards

IPSAS 43

IPSAS 44:

Non- Current

Assets Held

for Sale and

Discontinued

Operations

Applicable I't January 2025

The Standard requires:-

i. Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs

to sell and the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

iL Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be

presented separately in the statement of financial position and the

results ofdiscontinued operations to be presented separately in the

statement of financial performance.
a

t2

Applicable I't January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,

presentation, and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that

lessees and Iessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully

represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of

financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial

position, financial performance and cashflows of an SSCH.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present

information on right of use assets and lease liabilities.

The SSCH did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the financial.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenue recognition

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue'

Rendering of services

The SSGH recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of

completionwhentheou.....ofthetransactioncanbeestimatedreliably.Thestageof
completion is measured or;;;t;;"; to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total

estimated labour hours Where the confiact *t:"T:^t""*t be measured reliably' revenue is

recognized only to the extent that the expenses incurred are recoverable'

f,|rt"rril:: the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of

ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and when the

amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the economic benefits or

service potentiai associated with the transaction will flow to the SSCH'

Interest income

lnterest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

estimatedfufurecashreceiptsthroughtheexpectedlifeofthefinancialassettothatasset'snet

carrying amount' The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine

interest income for each Period'

i) Revenue from non-exchange tronsactions

Transfers from other Government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactio". *'ll "*:l^:ovemment 
entities.are measured at fair

value and recognized * "ui.irirg 
control of the *r"i (.*n, goods, services and property) if

the transfer is free from ;;td; and it is probable it'ut tt't economic benefits or service

potential related to ,h. *J;ii;"* ," ,n. sscauna can be measured reliably To the extent

thatthereisarelated*"o,.i"""n..t,edthatwouldgiverisetoaliabilitytorepaytheamount,
the amount is recorded '" 

;;:;;;*t of financial positio" and realised in the statement of

financial performance or.J. useful life of the asset that has been acquired using such funds'

l3
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Noles lo the Financial Statements (Continued)

b. Budget information

The original budget for FY xxx was approved by Board on xxxr Subsequent revisions or

additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific

approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the

original budget by the SSCH upon receiving the respective approvals in order to conclude the

final budget. Accordingly, the SSCll recorded additional appropriations ofxxxx on the FY xxx

budget following the Board's approval. The SSCII s budget is prcpared on a different basis to

the acfual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial statements. The financial

statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the nature ofexpenses

in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The

amounts in the hnancial statements were recast liom the accrual basis to the cash basis and

reclassified by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget.

A comparison of budget and actual amounts, preparcd on a comparable basis to the approved

budget, is then presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In

addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also

made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of

the financial statements and the approved budget. A statement to reconcile the actual amounts

on a comparable basis included in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts

and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance.

c. Taxes

Sales tax./ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount ofsales tax, except:

) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase ofassets or services is not recoverable

from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the

cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included.

The net amount ofsales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority

is included as part ofreceivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

14
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

d. Investment Property

lnvestmentpropertiesaremeasuredinitiallyatcost,includingtransactioncosts.Thecarrying

amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the

timethatcostisincurrediftherecognitioncriteriaaremetandexcludesthecostsofday-to-

a

day maintenance of an investment property'

lnvestmentpropertyacquiredthroughanon-exchangetransactionismeasuredatitsfairvalue

atthedateofacquisition.Subsequenttoinitialrecognition,investmentpropertiesaremeasured

usingthecostmodelandaredepreciatedoveraperiodofJears.Investmentpropertiesare

derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the investment property is

permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service potential is

expectedfromitsdisposal.Thedifferencebetweenthenetdisposalproceedsandthecarrying

amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition'

Transfers are made to or fiom investment property only when there is a change in use'

e. ProPertY, Plant and equiPment

Allproperty,plantandequipmentarestatedatcostlessaccumulateddepreciationand

impairmentlosses.Costincludesexpenditurethatisdirectlyattributabletotheacquisitionof

the items. when significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced

at intervals, the SSCH recogrrizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingty' Likewise' when a major inspection is performed' its cost is

recogtized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the

recognitioncriteriaaresatisfied.Allotherrepairandmaintenancecostsarerecognizedin

surplusordeficitasincurred.Whereanassetisacquiredinanon-exchangetransactionfornil

or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its lair value'

l5
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g. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible

assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses. lnternally generated intangible assets,

excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in

surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the

intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

I

a
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

f. Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to

ownership of the leased item to the SSCH. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at

the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the prcsent

value of the future minimum lease payments. The SSCH also recognizes the associated lease

liability at the inception ofthe lease. The liability recognized is measured as the present value

of the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and

reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if
there is no reasonable certainty that the SSCH will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of

the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset

and the lease term.

Operating leases are leases that do not hansfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental

to ownership of the leased item to the SSCH. Operating lease payments are recognized as an

operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straightline basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statemenls (Continued)

h. Research and develoPment costs

available for use or sale

rt and Financial State ents for The Ye
h
e

ThesSCHexpensesresearchcostsasincurred.Developmentcostsonanindividualprojectare

recognized as intangible assets when the SSCH can demonstrate:

) The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be

a

D lts intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

) The asset will generate fuhrre economic benefits or service potentiai

) The availability of resources to complete the asset

) The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development'

Followinginitialrecogritionofanasset,theassetiscarriedatcostlessanyaccumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment losses' Amortization of the asset begins when

developmentiscompleteandtheassetisavailableforuse.Itisamortizedoveltheperiodof

expected future benefit' During the period of development' the asset is tested for impairment

arurually with any impairment losses recogrized immediately in surplus or deficit'

i, Financial instruments

IPSAS4laddressestheclassification'measurementandde-recognitionoffinancialassetsand

financial liabilities, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model

for financial assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one SSCH and a

financialliabilityorequityinstrumentofanotherSSCH.Atinitialrecogrition,theSSCH

measuresafinancialassetorfinancialliabilityatitsfairvalueplusorminus,inthecaseofa

fmancialassetorfinancialliabilitynotatfairvaluethroughsurplusordeftcit,transactioncosts

thataredirectlyattributabletotheacquisitionorissueofthefinancialassetorlrnancialiiability.

t

Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

TheSSCHclassiflesitsfinancialassetsassubsequentlymeasuredatamortisedcost,fairvalue

throughnetassets/equityorfairvaluethroughsurplusanddeficitonthebasisofboththe

SSCH's management model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics

of the financial assei. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial asset

1'7
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is held within a management model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified

dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

outstanding. A financial asset is measured at fair value through net assets/ equity if it is held

within the management model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual

cashflows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise

on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding. A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through surplus

or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless

an SSCH has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in

equity instruments.

Subsequent measurement

Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the SSCH classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair

value are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets/ equity subject to certain

criteria being met.

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows

represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value

through surplus or deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that

is subsequently measured at amortized cost and is not part of a hcdging relationship is

recogtrized in profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from

these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

I
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Notes lo rhe Financial Statements (Conrtnued)

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the

financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and

interest, are measured at fair value through net assets/ equity' Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through net assets, except for the recogaition of impairment gains or losses,

interest revenue and foreigtr exchange gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit'

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective

interest rate method.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/

equity are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the sSCH

manages financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of

the assets would result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible

amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis' An

estimate is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the

year end.

lmpairment

The SSCH assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss ('ECL') associated

with its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The

SSCH recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and

sigrrificant judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are

set out in Note xx.

Financial liabilities

Classification

The SSCH classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost except for

financial liabilities measured through profit or loss.

-{. \
'i r I
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Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory

is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for

as follows:

) Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

D Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but

excluding borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a

nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current

replacement cost.Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

operations, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for

utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of operations of the SSCH.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the SSCH has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.

Where the SSCH expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for cxample, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recogni zed as a separate asset ouly when the

reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance

net of any reimbursement.

nr
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

l. Social Benefits

Social benefits are cash transfers provided to i) specific individuals and / or households that

meettheeligibilitycriteria,ii)mitigatetheeffectsofsocialrisksandiii)Addresstheneedof

societyasawhole.TheSSCHrecognisesasocialbenefitasanexpenseforthesocialbenefit

schemeatthesametimethatitrecognisesaliability.Theliabilityforthesocialbenefitscheme

ismeasuredatthebestestimateofthecost(thesocialbenefitpayments)thattheSSCHwill

incur in fulfrlling the present obligations represented by the liability'

m. Contingent liabilities

TheSSCHdoesnotrecognizeacontingentliabilitybutdisclosesdetailsofanycontingencies

inthenotestothefinancialstatementsunlessthepossibilityofanoutflowofresources

embodying economic benefits or service potential is remote'

n. Contingent assets

TheSSCHdoesnotrecognizeacontingentassetbutdisclosesdetailsofapossibleassetwhose

existenceiscontingentontheoccurrenceolnon-occurenceofoneormoreuncertainfuture

eventsnotwhollywithinthecontroloftheSSCHinthenotestotheflnancialstatements.

Contingentassetsareassessedcontinuallytoensruethatdevelopmentsaleappropriately

reflectedinthefinancialstatements'Ifithasbecomevirtuallycertainthataninflowof

economicbenelrtsorservicepotentialwillariseandtheasset'svaluecanbemeasuredreliably,

theassetandtherelatedrevenuearerecognizedinthefinancialstatementsoftheperiodin

which the change occurs'

o. Nature and PurPose of reserves

The SSCH creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements'

p. Changes ln accounting policies and estimates

The SSCH recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively' The effects

ofchangesinaccountingpolicyareappliedprospectivelyifretrospectiveapplicationis

impractical'

a
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Notes to the l-inancial Statemenls (Conlinued)

q. Employee benefits

Retirement benefit plans

The SSCH provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution
plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an SSCH pays fixed contributions into a

separate SSCH (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the

payment of retirement benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become

payable. Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-

contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actua ally valued tri-annually on the

projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered through lump-sum

payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

employers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit

obligation.

r. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on

the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign culrency are

reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on

that date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting

ofcreditors at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the period,

are recognized as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

s. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and

equipment. Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being

acquired or constnrcted and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when

construction of the asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the statement of

financial performance.

t. Related parties

The SSCH regards a related party as a person or an SSCH with the ability to exert control

individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the SSCH, or vice versa'

Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the

CEO/principal and senior managers.

l
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TheSSCHanalysesallaspectsofserviceconcessionarrangementsthatitentersintoln

determiningtheappropriateaccountingtreatmentanddisclosurerequirements'Inparticular,

whereaprivatepartycontributesanassettothearranSement'theSsCllrecognizesthatasset

when,andonlywhen,itcontrolsorregulatestheservices'Theoperatormustprovidetogether

withtheasset,towhomitmustprovidethem'andatwhatprice'lnthecaseofassetsotherthan
,whole-of.life,assets,itcontrols'throughownership,beneficialentitlementorotherwise-any

sigrificantresidualinterestintheassetattheendofthealTangement.Anyassetssorecogn'ized

aremeasuredattheirfairvalue.Totheextentthatanassethasbeenrecogrrized,thesSCHalso

recognizes a corresponding liability' adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received'

Annual RePorl and Financial Statements for The Yea

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

u. Service concession arrangements

Cash and cash equivalents

Cashandcashequivalentscomprisecashonhandandcashatbank,short-termdepositsoncall

andhighlyliquidinvestmentswithanoriginalmaturityofthreemonthsorless'whichare

readily convertible to known amounts ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes

invalue.BankaccountbalancesincludeamountsheldattheCentralBankofKenyaandat

variouscommercialbanksattheendoftheflnancialyear.Forthepurposesofthesefinancial

statements,cashandcashequivalentsalsoincludeshorttermcashimprestsandadvancesto

authorisedpublicofficersand/orinstifutionswhichwerenotsunenderedoraccountedforat

the end of the financial Year'

w. ComParative figures

Wherenecessarycomparativefiguresforthepreviousfinancialyearhavebeenamendedor

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation'

x Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the

financial statements for the year ended June 30' 2023

I
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5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the SSCH's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that atfecl the reported amounts

of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the

end of the reporling period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could

result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or

liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at

the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The SSCH

based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial

statements were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future

developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control

of the SSCH. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.( TPSAS 1.140)

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to

inform potential future use and value from disposal:

and processes.

Provisions

provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information

available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx'

provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is

material.

a
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Notes to Financial Statements Continued

6. Transfers from the County Government

6 b Transfers from The Coun Govern ment

Unconditional grants
1,832,349769,860Operational grant

0Level 5 grants

0Unconditional development grants

Other grants

0

Conditional grants

0User fee forgone

0Transforming health services for Universal care project (THUCP)

0DANIDA
0Wards Development grant

0Paediatric block grant

0Administration block grant

0Laboratory grant

769,860 1,832,349Total government grants and subsidies

t,832,349
0 0

Kisumu
County
Government

769,860

0 0 0
1,832,349769,860

Total

25

a

0

tl

I

I

0



Sondu SubCounty Level I Hospital (Kisuntu Counq, Government)
Annual Repon and Financial Ststeme ts for The l'ear Ended 30'h June 202-l

a

Notes to Financial Statemcnts Continued

1 . Rendering of Services-Medical Service lncome

Pharmaceuticals 83,740

Non-Pharmaceuticals 42,741 0

r 33,840 0Laboratory

Medical examination 850 0

0Outpatient 780

83,740Total revenue from the rendering of
servlces

L78,zLL

t
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a

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

8. MedicaV Clinical Costs

9. Employee Costs

)

,

34,900 40,000Laboratory chemicals and reagents

t4'7,300 1s2,000Food and Ration

0Uniform, clothing, and linen

30,000Dressing and Non-Pharmaceuticals

210,93'7 710,457Pharmaceutical supplies

s0,000 50,000Health information stationery

25,750 65,000

555,787
7,047 ,457Total medical/ clinical costs

308,000 788,000Salaries, wages, and allowances

308.000 788,000Employee costs

27

0

86,900
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued,)

10. Board of Management Expenses

ll. Repairs And Maintenance

12. General Expenses

75,000Sitting allowance 2t,500

Total 23,500

r 55,00030,000Property- Buildings

30,000 155,000Total repairs and maintenance

Advertising and publicity expenses

Waste management expenses

Insecticides and rodenticides

Audit fees

756Bank charges

Conferences and delegations
95,000Catering services

Contracted services
r 46,00070,000Electricity expenses
25,000Fuel and Lubricants

Insurance

Research and development expenses

72,000i 5,000Travel and accommodation allowance

Legal expenses

34,000Refined fuel for generator

Courier and postal services

Printing rnd stationery
65,00030,0000General Office SuPPlies
20,000Other Fuels

a

I
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27,00016,000
Water and sewerage costs

22,8928,500
Sceservlneohon1 bdan penoheT ep 413,648173,500

Total General ExPenses

a
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

27 (a), Detailed Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents

13. Receivables From Exchange Transactions

Anal of Receivables From Exchan e Transactions

14. Receivables FromNon-ExchangeTransactions

a

'Y

t

a) Current account

Kenya Commercial bank 1108278019 153,44'.7 462,942

Sub- total

153,441 462,942Grand total

00

Rent receivables

Other exchange debtors

00Total receivables

o/" of
the total

Current
FY

Yo of
the

total

Comparative
FY

xxx o/%l,ess than I year

xxx o//on//oBetween l- 2 years
o//oxxx%Between 2-3 years

%xxx%Over 3 years

xxx o/o//oTotal (a+b)

300,000Transfcrs from the County Govemmcrrt

Undisbursed donor funds

Other debtors (non-exchange transactions)

30

:l - ar i I 7V21!2tJ22

Medical serviccs receivables-
NIIIII

Less: impairment allowance

: '; l ''72n: I
: Nl ir:
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I
j

Less: impairment allowance

Total 300,000

Anal sis of Receivables From Non-Exchan 'f ransactions

15. Invcntories

a

Current
FY

o/o of
the total

Comparative
FY

o/o of the
total

Less than I year xxx o/ xxx

xxx xxx %

Between 2-3 years xxx % xxx /o

Over 3 years xxx % xxx o/o

Total (a+b) xxx /o xxx /o

Pharmaceutical supplies

Maintenance supplies

Food supplies

Linen and clothing supplies

General supplies

Less: provision for impairment of stocks

Total

3l

I

Between l- 2 years

Cleaning materials supplies
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

0 0 0 0 0 00 0Ar I luly 2022

0 0 0 0 0Additions 0 0

0 0 0 00 0 0Disposals 0

0 0 0 00 0 0Transfers/adjustments 0

0 0 0 0 0 00 0At 30th .Iun 2022

0 0 0 00 0 0At I July 2023 0

0 0 0 00 0 0 0Additions

0 0 0 0 00 0 0Disposals

0 0 0 0 0 00 0Transfer/adjustments

0 0 0 0 0 0 0At 30th Jun 2023 0

Depreciation and impairment
00 0 0 0 0 0At1lnly2022

0 0 0 0 00 0Depreciation for the year

0 0 00 0 0 0Disposals

0 0 00 0 0 0Impairment
0 00 0 0 0At 30 June 2022

II
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0000000At July 2023 000000
Depreciation 00000
Disposals 00000
Impairment 00000

0Transfer/adjustment 000000At 30th June 2023

Net book values 0000000At 30th Jun 2022 000000At 30m Jun 2023

33
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Financial Risk Management

The SSCH's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management

progrcmme focuses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks

to minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable

levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that

credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.
The SSCH's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:
(i) Credit risk

The SSCH has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to

pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits

with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on internal or
external assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in

the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by

the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the currcnt

economic environmentEvents rfter the Reportlng Perlod

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

18. Ultimate and Holding SSCH

The SSCH is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Government Agency under the

Departrnent of . Its ultimate parent is the County Govemment of Kisumu.

34

19. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) and all values are rounded off
to the nearest shilling.
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19. Appendiccs

Appendix l: Progress on Follow Up of Auditor Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the extemal auditor, and management
comments that were provided to the auditor. We havc nominated focal persons to resolve the
various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the
issues to be resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the external audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Observation" and "management comments", required above, from the

final external audit report that is signed by Management.

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point

persons within your SSCH responsible the for implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this

report to National Treasury.

Lo*4
Accounting Officer

E
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Appendix II: Projects Implemented by The SSCH

Projects

Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise lhe status ofprojecl completion at the end ofeach quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the project is etc)

36
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Appendix III: Confirmation Letter

[Insert Your Letterh eatl]

flnsert name ofbeneficiary SSCH]

[Insert Address]

The [insert SC/SAG'4/Fund name /rerel wishes.to conftrm the

Please compare the amounts disbursed to you with the amounts

irri, i.qu"ri in the space provided and return it to us'

amounts disbursed to you as at 30e June 29XX'T indicated in the table below'

you received and populate tht;L'""iln the table below Please sigrr and stamp

at 02 xxeunJ0th3AShsdunA/FGA/SCSbursedDistsunoAm

lnter-
Ministerial (C)

Total
(D)=(A+B+c)DeveloPment (B)

Recurrent (A)
Differences
(KShs)
(F) D-E

Amount Receiv

by [beneficiary
SSCH]
(KShs) as at 30h

June 20XX (E)

ed

Date
Disbursed

Reference
Number

Total

ln confirm that the amounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated

ment of the beneficiarY SSCH:
ts DePHcad of A

Nam

.-, IaD-E),
Si n ..

3'7

Inter-SSCH

cx72l - 40100,
KISUMU

;Date



Sondu SuhCounty Level 4 Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2023

Appendix IV Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditures

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4
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Sondu Level iv County Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 30th June 2023

Appendix V: Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template
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